ORIGINAL

FILED

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA SID J. WHITE

JAN 21 1999

THERESA SIENIARECKI,

Petitioner,

vs.

CASE NO. 94,800

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

CLERK, SUPREME COURT
By BAK
Chief/Deputy Clerk

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

RICHARD L. JORANDBY
Public Defender
15th Judicial Circuit of Florida
Criminal Justice Building
421 Third Street/6th Floor
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401
(561) 355-7600

JOSEPH R. CHLOUPEK
Assistant Public Defender
Florida Bar No. 434590

Counsel for Petitioner

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner was the defendant in the trial court and was the appellant in the District Court of Appeal, Fourth District. She will be referred to by name and as Petitioner in this brief.

In accordance with the Florida Supreme Court Administrative Order, issued on July 13, 1998, and modeled after Rule 28-2 (d), Rules of the United States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit, counsel petitioner hereby certifies that the instant brief has been prepared with 12 point Courier New type, a font that is not spaced proportionately.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Petitioner was charged by information with aggravated assault of a disabled person pursuant to Florida Statutes, Section 782.07(2) (1995). Prior to trial, defense counsel filed a motion to dismiss this statute as unconstitutional, both facially, and as applied (R 25-34). This motion was denied by the trial court (R 39). Thereafter, Petitioner was found guilty of the lesser-included offense of neglect of a disabled person (R 48-49, 572). Subsequently, Petitioner was sentenced to twenty two months imprisonment (R 57, 60, 582).

Thereafter, Petitioner appealed her conviction and sentence to the Fourth District Court of Appeal (DCA), contending that both Sections 782.07 (2) and 825.102 (3) (a) (1997) were facially unconstitutional, due to a lack of a specific intent requirement, vagueness of various statutory terms defining these crimes, and the improper imposition of an affirmative duty of care for her elderly mother, Sieniarecki v. State, 24 FLW D112 (Fla. 4th DCA, December 30, 1998). In a brief per curiam decision, that Court rejected Petitioner's constitutional challenges in toto, 24 FLW at D112. Petitioner filed her notice of intent to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction, pursuant to Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030 (a) (2) (a) (1), on January 15, 1999.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This Court should exercise its discretionary jurisdiction, pursuant to Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030 (a) (2) (a) (1) to review the Fourth DCA's decision in Sieniarecki v. State, 24 FLW D112 (Fla. 4th DCA, December 30, 1998), since that decision expressly upheld the constitutionality of Florida Statutes, Sections 782.07 (2) and 825.102 (3) (a), Florida Statutes (1997).

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT SHOULD EXERCISE ITS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION TO REVIEW THE FOURTH DCA'S DECISION IN SIENIARECKI V. STATE, 24 FLW D112 (FLA. 4TH DCA, DECEMBER 30, 1998), SINCE THAT DECISION EXPRESSLY UPHELD THE CONSTITUTIONALITY OF FLORIDA STATUTES, SECTIONS 782.07 (2) AND 825.102 (3) (a), FLORIDA STATUTES (1997).

Under Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030 (a) (2) (a) (1), this Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review decisions by District Courts of Appeal that "expressly declare valid a state statute". In Petitioner's case, the Fourth DCA upheld her due process and void for vagueness challenges to Florida Statutes, Section 782.07 (2) and 825.102 (3) (a) (1997), 24 FLW D112 (Fla. 4th DCA, December 30, 1998). Petitioner contended below that these statutes violated her right to due process by imposing an affirmative duty to act in providing dependent care to her elderly mother, while penalizing Petitioner's failure to so act without requiring specific criminal intent, citing Lambert v. California, 355 U.S. 225, 78 S.Ct. 240, 2 L.Ed.2d 228 (1957) and State v. Gruen, 586 So.2d 1220 (Fla. 3d DCA 1991); additionally, Petitioner contended that the before-mentioned statutes were unconstitutionally vague as applied in all their applications, due to a failure to sufficiently define the statutory terms "care, supervision, [and]

services" and "entrusted, assumed, [and] responsibility," see Florida Statutes, Section 825.010 (2) (3). Finally, Petitioner contended that the statutes upheld in Sieniarecki by the Fourth DCA violated the right of Petitioner's mother, Patricia Seiniarecki, to privacy to refuse medical services. Under such circumstances, where a statute is upheld despite substantial constitutional challenge, this Court should exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review a District Court of Appeal decision rejecting such a constitutional challenge, see e.g. Warren v.State, 572 So. 2d 1376, 1377 (Fla. 1991) reviewing State v. Warren, 558 So.2d 55 (Fla. 2d DCA 1990) (vagueness challenge to statute prohibiting keeping "a house of ill fame . . . for the purpose of prostitution or lewdness"; Supreme Court reviewing statute upheld by DCA, find statute void for vagueness).