ORIGINAL

CKERK, SUPREME COURT Ву_

Chief Deputy Sierk

THERESA SIENIARECKI,

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

Petitioner,

٧.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

****************** ON APPEAL FROM THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL ***********

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL Tallahassee, Florida

ETTIE FELSTMANN Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No.: 0892830 1685 Palm Beach Lakes 81vd., Ste. 300 West Palm Beach, FL 33401 Telephone (561) 688-7759 Fax (561) 688-7771

Counsel for Respondent

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The petitioner was the appellant in the appeal proceedings and the defendant at trial in the circuit court of the 17th Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County. The respondent, State of Florida, was the appellee in the Fourth District Court of Appeal and the prosecution in the trial court. In this brief, the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Honorable Court. The following symbols will be used: "A" Appendix.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent accepts petitioner's statement of the case and facts for purposes of this appeal in so far as it presents an accurate, objective and non-argumentative recital of the procedural history and facts in the record, and subject to the additions and clarifications set forth in the argument portion of this brief and in the district court's opinion.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Although this Court has the authority to exercise its jurisdiction, the State of Florida strongly disagrees with the suggestion that it do so, because the opinion of the fourth district court is correct.

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT SHOULD DECLINE TO EXERCISE ITS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION TO REVIEW THE INSTANT CASE BECAUSE THE OPINION OF THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IS LEGALLY CORRECT.

Petitioner claims that this Court should exercise its discretionary jurisdiction, pursuant to Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(i), to review the fourth district's decision in Sieniarecki v. State, 24 Florida Law Weekly D112 (Fla. 4th DCA December 30, 1998). Respondent agrees that this Court has discretionary jurisdiction under Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(i) and may review a decision of a district court of appeal that expressly declares a state statute valid. See generally Philip J. Padovano, Appellate Practice, § 2.7 (1988 ed.); Art. V § 3(b)(3) Fla. Const. (1980). The state, however, strongly disagrees with the suggestion that it do so.

In <u>Sieniarecki v. State</u>, 24 Florida Law Weekly D112 (Fla. 4th DCA December 30, 1998), the Fourth District Court of Appeal reviewed the constitutionality of §§ 782.07(2) and 825.102(3)(a), Florida Statutes (1997). Petitioner's first claim was that the statutes, that do not contain a specific intent requirement, violate due process by imposing an affirmative duty upon her to act. Citing to <u>State v. Oxx</u>, 417 So. 2d 287, 289 (Fla. 5th DCA 1982), the fourth district held that the Legislature has the "power to dispense with the element of intent and thereby punish

particular acts without regard to the mental attitude of the offender." Id. The fourth district concluded that the statute was not facially unconstitutional even though it penalizes the failure to act without containing an element of specific intent, and that these statutes do not punish mere presence or passive conduct. Rather, the statutes penalize the failure to provide the basic needs of life to petitioner's dependent mother where petitioner assumed the duty to do so. Sieniarecki v. State, 24 Florida Law Weekly D112.

Based on established cases, the fourth district rejected a claim of vagueness, because petitioner's conduct fell within the conduct proscribed by the challenged statutes. Additionally, the fourth district rejected the claim that \$ 782.07(2), Florida Statues, violated the right to privacy of petitioner's mother, explaining that "constitutional rights are personal in nature and generally may not be asserted vicariously." Id.

The statute complained of by petitioner is not facially unconstitutional, nor was it unconstitutionally applied to her. This Court should reject petitioner's suggestion that it exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal.

CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE based on the foregoing arguments and the authorities cited herein, Respondent respectfully contends that the Fourth District Court of Appeal did not err in its decision. This Court should decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review that decision.